
 
COMMISSIONERS COURT AGENDA 

Tuesday, April 22, 2025 

9:30 a.m. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Striving for Excellence 

 
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

Neal Franklin, County Judge  

Commissioner Christina Drewry, Precinct 1 

Commissioner John Moore, Precinct 2 

Commissioner J Scott Herod, Precinct 3 

Commissioner Ralph Caraway Sr, Precinct 4 

Tuesday, April 22, 2025



 
 

COUNTY OF SMITH 
COMMISSIONERS COURT 

200 E. Ferguson, Suite 100 

Tyler, Texas 75702 
 

Phone: (903) 590-4605 Fax: (903) 590-4615 
 

Pursuant to Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, this notice is to advise that a regular 

meeting of the Smith County Commissioners Court will be held at 9:30 a.m. on Tuesday, 

April 22, 2025, in the Smith County Commissioners Courtroom on the 1st floor of the Smith 

County Courthouse Annex, 200 E. Ferguson, Tyler, Texas. 

 

Questions regarding this agenda should be directed to Commissioners Court Administrative 

Assistant at 903-590-4605. The agenda is available on the County's website 

(http://www.smith-county.com). 
 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

DECLARE A QUORUM PRESENT 

DECLARE LEGAL NOTICES POSTED AND COURT DULY CALLED 

INVOCATION 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Members of the public who have previously filled out a 

participation form have an opportunity to address the Commissioners Court on agenda items. 

The Court is unable to deliberate on non-agenda items. If you desire to request a matter on a 

future agenda, you may make the request to a member of Commissioners Court. Individual 

comments are limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes. If you wish to address the Court, 

obtain a public participation form at the Commissioners Court entryway and submit the 

completed form to a staff member before the meeting begins. Please be mindful of the 

Commissioners Court Rules of Procedure, Conduct and Decorum when making your 

comments and/or attending public meetings. 

 

 

 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER
DECLARE A QUORUM PRESENT
DECLARE LEGAL NOTICES POSTED AND COURT DULY CALLED
INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

http://www.smith-county.com/


OPEN SESSION:  

 

RESOLUTIONS 

 

1. Consider and take necessary action to adopt a resolution proclaiming April 25, 2025, for 

Tyler ISD, and May 1, 2025, for Whitehouse ISD, as "Decision Day" in Smith County. 

 

COURT ORDERS 

 

COMMISSIONERS COURT  

 

2. Consider and take necessary action to adopt a resolution of support for the establishment of 

the "Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton Memorial Highway" in Smith County. 

 

3. Consider and take necessary action to accept the Smith County Historical Commission 

bylaws, and authorize the county judge to sign all related documentation. 

 

4. Consider and take necessary action to amend the order to increase the Smith County 

Historical Commission size from nine members to 10 members, and authorize the county 

judge to sign all related documentation. 

 

5. Consider and take necessary action to name and appoint one member to serve from the time 

of appointment through January 31, 2027, on the Smith County Historical Commission, and 

authorize the county judge to sign all related documentation. 

 

FIRE MARSHAL/ EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

 

6. Consider and take necessary action to approve the awards of $297,365 for debris removal, 

$35,438 for CR 2110, and $21,563 for CR 3203, from the Federal Emergency Management 

Agency for Public Assistance, allow the county judge to sign all related documentation, and 

allow the Emergency Management Coordinator to submit all required documentation to the 

Texas Division of Emergency Management. 

 

ROAD AND BRIDGE  

 

7. Consider and take necessary action to accept the completion of the construction contract for 

Roadway Improvements to CR 1246, authorize the county judge to execute the 

Reconciliation Change Order, and authorize final payment to Texana Land & Asphalt, Inc. 

 

8. Consider and take necessary action to accept the completion of the construction contract for 

Roadway Improvements to CR 313 and CR 32, authorize the county judge to execute the 

Reconciliation Change Order, and authorize final payment to Texana Land & Asphalt, Inc. 

 

RECURRING BUSINESS 

 

ROAD AND BRIDGE 

 

9. Consider and take necessary action to authorize the county judge to sign the: 

 

a. Re-plat for Gruene Valle Ranch, Lots 54, 55 and 56, Precinct 1, 

b. Re-plat for Johnston Farms Estates, Unit 2, Precinct 3, and 

a. Re-plat for Gruene Valle Ranch. Lots 54. 55 and 56. Precinct 1.

b. Re-plat for Johnston Farms Estates, Unit 2, Precinct 3, and



c. Re-plat for Dove Ridge, Phase One, Precinct 4. 

 

10. Receive pipe and/or utility line installation request (notice only): 

 

a. County Road 138, CenterPoint Energy, install lines for service, Precinct 1, 

b. County Road 2213, Conterra Ultra Broadband LLC, install fiber optic cable, Precinct 2, 

and 

c. County 2175, Walnut Grove Water Supply Corporation, road bore, Precinct 2. 

 

AUDITOR'S OFFICE 

 

11. Consider and take necessary action to approve and/or ratify payment of accounts, bills, 

payroll, transfer of funds, amendments, and health claims. 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: For purposes permitted by Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, entitled Open 

Meetings, Sections 55 l.071, 55 l.072, 551.073, 551.074, 551.0745, 551.075, and 551.076. The Commissioners 

Court reserves the right to exercise its discretion and may convene in executive session as authorized by the 

Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, et seq., on any of the items listed on its formal or briefing agendas. 

 

                   
      

ADJOURN 

SMITH COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX ACCESSIBILTY STATEMENT FOR 

DISABLED PERSONS This meeting site is accessible to disabled persons as follows: Entrance to the 

Courthouse Annex is accessible through the front entrance on the south side of the Courthouse Annex located at 200 

E. Ferguson. A wheelchair ramp provides access to the front entrance. The Commissioners Courtroom is on the first 

floor. If any special assistance or accommodations are needed in order to attend a Commissioners Court meeting, 

please contact Commissioners Court staff at 903-590-4605, in advance, so accommodations can be arranged. 

 

Date: 4/17/2025  Time: 2:00 p  
 

 

Posted By: Jennafer Bell  
 

NEAL FRANKLIN, COUNTY JUDGE 



1 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

04/03/2025 Casey Murphy

04/22/2025 Commissioners Court

Resolution: Decision Day

Consider and take necessary action to adopt a resolution proclaiming April 25, 2025, 
for Tyler ISD, and May 1, 2025, for Whitehouse ISD, as "Decision Day" in Smith 
County.

LaToya Young, Executive Director for the Tyler Area Business Education Council, requested the resolution for 
Decision Day, scheduled for four Tyler ISD high schools on April 25, and at Whitehouse High School on May 1.  
Decision Day is a day where graduating seniors are celebrated for announcing their decision on their plans right 
after high school, whether it is a four-year university, community college, trade school, training program or 
joining the military.

Jennafer Bell jbell2@smith-county.com

Casey Murphy cmurphy@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



Smith County Commissioners Court 

Resolution 
At a regular meeting of the Smith County Commissioners Court held at the Smith County Courthouse Annex,  

Tyler, Texas, at which a quorum was present, the following Resolution was adopted: 

WHEREAS, the decision to pursue postsecondary education, training, the military or a career right after 
high school graduation can play a vital role in the future success of our young people; and 
 
WHEREAS, students whose plans after high school include a four-year university, community college, 
trade school, training program or the military can improve their lifetime earnings potential; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tyler Area Business Education Council, Tyler Independent School District, Whitehouse 
Independent School District, Tyler Junior College, the University of Texas at Tyler and business partners 
throughout Smith County are committed to recognizing and celebrating graduating seniors for their plans 
after high school and encourage younger students to prepare early for college; and 
 
WHEREAS, more than 400 students participated in Decision Day in Smith County last year; and 
 
WHEREAS, our young citizens are our strongest asset for the future of Smith County and will drive   
economic growth, innovation and stability for all residents of Smith County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commissioners Court of the County of Smith, 
Texas, through adoption of this Resolution does hereby proclaim April 25, 2025, for Tyler ISD, and May 
1, 2025, for Whitehouse ISD, as 
 

“Decision Day” 
in Smith County and encourages all residents to celebrate our graduating seniors for their plans after high 

school. 

WITNESS OUR HANDS THIS 22nd day of April A.D. 2025 

 

 
 

Neal Franklin 

County Judge 

Christina Drewry                                                          

Commissioner, Precinct 1 

John Moore                                                                      

Commissioner, Precinct 2 

J Scott Herod                                                            

Commissioner, Precinct 3 

Ralph Caraway Sr.                                                       

Commissioner, Precinct 4 



2 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

04/014/2025 Casey Murphy

04/22/2025 Commissioners Court

Resolution in Support: Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton Memorial Highway

Consider and take necessary action to adopt a resolution of support for the 
establishment of the "Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton Memorial Highway" in Smith 
County.

Reece DeWoody, District Director for Senator Bryan Hughes, requested a resolution of support from 
Smith County for Senate Bill 2515, which designates the portion of State Highway 64 West in Smith 
County between its intersection with Loop 323 and its intersection with the western Smith County line as 
the “Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton Memorial Highway." Seaton served as Smith County Fire Marshal for 
more than 27 years before he passed away in 2014.

Jennafer Bell jbell2@smith-county.com

Casey Murphy cmurphy@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the Smith County Commissioners Court held at the Smith County 
Courthouse Annex, Tyler, Texas, at which a quorum was present, the following Resolution 
was adopted:  

 
WHEREAS, Smith County Commissioners Court is in support of the State of Texas 
naming a portion of State Highway 64 West to the “Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton 
Memorial Highway;” and 
 
WHEREAS, Smith County Commissioners Court is in support of the state recognition, 
being pursued by Texas Senator Bryan Hughes’ Office; and 
 
WHEREAS, Seaton served as the Smith County fire marshal for more than 27 years 
before his passing in 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, Senator Hughes has filed a bill in the Texas Legislature to rename the 
portion of State Highway 64 West in Smith County, between its intersection with Loop 
323 and its intersection with the western Smith County line. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Smith County Commissioners Court 
does support the establishment of the “Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton Memorial 
Highway” in Smith County. 
 
WITNESS OUR HANDS THIS 22nd day of April 2025 
 
 

 
  
 
 

 
 
 

Neal Franklin 
County Judge 

  

   
 
Christina Drewry 
Commissioner, Precinct 1 

 
 
John Moore 
Commissioner, Precinct 2 

   
 
  
J Scott Herod 
Commissioner, Precinct 3 

 
  
Ralph Caraway Sr. 
Commissioner, Precinct 4 



By: AA Hughes S.B. ANo. A2515

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED

AN ACT

relating to the designation of a portion of State Highway 64 in

Smith County as the Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton Memorial Highway.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTION A1. AA Subchapter B, Chapter 225 , Transportation Code,

is amended by adding Section 225.243 to read as follows:

Sec. A225.243. AA FIRE MARSHAL JIMMY W. SEATON MEMORIAL

HIGHWAY. (a) The portion of State Highway 64 in Smith County

between its intersection with State Highway Loop 323 and its

intersection with the western Smith County line is designated as

the Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton Memorial Highway. The designation

is in addition to any other designation.

(b) AA Subject to Section 225.021 (c), the department shall:

(1) AA design and construct markers indicating the

designation as the Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton Memorial Highway

and any other appropriate information; and

(2) AA erect a marker at each end of the highway and at

appropriate intermediate sites along the highway.

SECTION A2. AA It is the intention of the 89th Legislature,

Regular Session, 2025, that the provisions added by this Act be

renumbered to prevent multiple provisions with the same

designation.

SECTION A3. AA This Act takes effect September 1, 2025.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

89R16777 RDR-F 1

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TN&Value=225.021&Date=3/13/2025
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TN&Value=225&Date=3/13/2025
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=TN&Value=225.021&Date=3/13/2025


Submission of Background Information 
Author's Statement of Purpose 

Please note that the committee staff and/or the Senate Research Center staff may edit 
submitted work for grammar and form prior to inclusion in the bill analysis. 

 
To: Amy Jeter, Committee Clerk 
 Senate Committee on Transportation 
 
 Ellis Prater-Burgess, Bill Analysis Coordinator 
 Senate Research Center 
 
From: Owen Thompson 
 Senator Bryan Hughes 
 
Date:  April 7, 2025 
 
re:  SB 2515  
 
 

Constituents from the Smith County area have proposed to honor the life and 
service of Jimmy W. Seaton, who served as Smith County’s Fire Marshal for over 27 
years before his passing in 2014.  

 
SB 2515 honors this request by designating the portion of State Highway 64 in 

Smith County between its intersection with State Highway Loop 323 and its intersection 
with the western Smith County line as the “Fire Marshal Jimmy W. Seaton Memorial 
Highway”, in addition to any other designation. 
 



3 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should 
be completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Wednesday at 5:00pm  
the week before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been 
proactively vetted with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court 
Meetings are at 9:30am on Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

4/16/2025 Rachel McCord

4/22/2025 Comm Court/Historical Commission

Smith County Historical Commission - Bylaws

Consider and take necessary action to accept the Smith County Historical 
Commission bylaws, and authorize the county judge to sign all related documentation. 

See attached.

N/A

Rachel McCord rmccord@smith-county.com

Jennafer Bell jbell2@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



 

 

SMITH COUNTY HISTORICAL COMMISSION 
 

BYLAWS DRAFT 
 

  

Page 1 of 9 

Article 1 

Authority and Name 

 
1.01 The existence and operation of a County Historical Commission is authorized by the State of 
Texas under Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 318, as amended. 
 
1.02 The name of the organization shall be the Smith County Historical Commission, hereinafter 
referred to as the “CHC” or the “Commission.” 
 

Article 2 

Purpose 

 
2.01 The purpose of the Smith County Historical Commission shall be to advise the 
Commissioners Court of Smith County, assist the Texas Historical Commission, and to initiate 
and conduct programs in the promotion of preserving the county’s historic and cultural resources.  
 
2.02 The SCHC shall identify, protect, preserve, and interpret the history of Smith County by:  

a. Conducting surveys of historic sites and resources; 
b. Reviewing applications for state historical markers; 
c. Participating in Section 106 Reviews as a Consulting Party for projects that impact cultural 

resources in Smith County, as defined in the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966. 
d. Commenting on applications for designation at the local, state, and federal levels; 
e. Working with the Texas Historical Commission to plan for long-term preservation goals; 
f. Working with, encouraging, and educating owners of historic properties on the benefits of 

historic preservation and how to care for their resources; 
g. Documenting the history of the county by written, oral, and other means; 
h. Facilitating the preservation of documents, objects, and other artifacts pertaining to the 

history of the county; 
i. Encouraging community members to advocate for the preservation of local resources; and 
j. Promoting the public heritage of the county through education and publicity. 

 
The work at the SCHC is not to duplicate the work of other historical preservation efforts in the 
County, but to supplement and encourage this work through collaboration and cooperation. 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 9 

 
Article 3 

Powers and Duties of the Commission 

 
3.01 RESOURCE IDENTIFICATION. Pursuant to Section 318.006 of the Texas Local 
Government Code: 
 

(a) The Commission shall institute and carry out a continuing historic resource survey of the 
county to identify the existence and condition of historic buildings, structures, and other 
historical and archeological sites, private archeological collections, important endangered 
properties, or other historical features within the county, and shall report the data collected 
to the Commissioners Court and the Texas Historical Commission. 

(b) The Commission shall develop and maintain a historic resource inventory of surveyed 
properties and districts in accordance with standards established by the Texas Historical 
Commission. The inventory shall be known as the Smith County Historic Sites and 
Structures Inventory (SCHSSI) and should be resurveyed every ten (10) years. 
 

(c) The Commission shall establish a system for the periodic review and assessment of the 
condition of designated properties in the county, including Recorded Texas Historic 
Landmarks, State Antiquities Landmarks, and individual historic properties or districts 
listed in the National Register of Historic Places. The Commission should report the results 
of the review and assessment to the Texas Historical Commission as part of its decennial 
historic resource survey and inventory. 

 
3.02 REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS. Pursuant to Sections 318.008 and 318.0101 of 
the Texas Local Government Code and in order to inform the Commissioners Court and the Texas 
Historical Commission of the Commission's needs and programs: 
 

(a) The Commission shall make an annual report of its activities and recommendations to the 
Commissioners Court and to the Texas Historical Commission at the start of each calendar 
year for the previous year. The Commission may make as many other reports and 
recommendations as it sees fit. 
 

(b) The Commission shall make recommendations to the Commissioners Court and the Texas 
Historical Commission concerning the acquisition and designation of property, real or 
personal, that is of historical, architectural, cultural, or archeological significance. 
 

(c) The Commission shall work in partnership with other preservation entities to prepare a plan 
for the preservation of the county's historic and cultural resources. The Commission shall 
use the Texas Historical Commission's statewide preservation plan for guidance. The 
preservation plan should be updated every ten (10) years. 

 
3.03 RESOURCE INTERPRETATION. Pursuant to Section 318.010 of the Texas Local 
Government Code: 
 

(a) The Commission shall review applications for Texas Historical Markers to determine the 
accuracy, appropriateness, and completeness of the application. All state historical marker 



Page 3 of 9 

applications submitted during the regular annual application period shall require review 
and recommendation from the Commission. 
 

(b) The Commission shall establish a system for the periodic review, assessment, and 
maintenance of Texas Historical Markers in the county. 
 

(c) The Commission shall work to promote historic and cultural sites in the county to develop 
and sustain heritage tourism. 

 
3.04 EDUCATION. Pursuant to Section 318.007 of the Texas Local Government Code, the 
Commission shall strive to create countywide awareness and appreciation of historic preservation 
and its benefits and uses. The Commission may partner with schools, museums, universities, and 
other educational entities to develop and propagate resources for this purpose. 
 
3.05 HISTORIC SITE TAX EXEMPTION. Pursuant to Section 318.012 of the Texas Local 
Government Code: 
 

(a) The Commissioners Court may establish a program under which the Commission: 
 

(1) receives and reviews applications that are filed with the county and that request a 
property tax exemption under Section 11.24, Tax Code; and 
 

(2) recommends to the Commissioners Court whether to grant the exemption and, if 
the grant of the exemption is recommended, how much of the property's assessed 
value should be exempt from taxation. The Commission shall determine the 
standards and qualifications for such a program. 

 
(b) The Commission may periodically examine the property that is granted the tax exemption 

and recommend to the Commissioners Court whether the exemption should be withdrawn 
in the case of a loss of the property’s historic integrity. 
 

(c) The Commissioners Court shall require a person whose property is granted the tax 
exemption to notify the HCHC of any plans the person may have to modernize the property 
or change it in any other manner that would affect its historic integrity. 

 
3.06 CONTRACTS FOR LEASE OR MANAGEMENT OF LANDMARKS. Pursuant to Section 
318.013 of the Texas Local Government Code: 
 

(a) The Commissioners Court may, on recommendation from the Commission or other 
interested persons, contract with a private person or entity for the lease or management of 
any county-owned real estate, building, structure, or site that is designated by the Texas 
Historical Commission as a Recorded Texas Historic Landmark, State Antiquities 
Landmark, or otherwise considered worthy of preservation because of its history, culture, 
or architecture. 
 



Page 4 of 9 

(b) The contract must be drawn in consultation with the Commission and must specify the 
duties of the contracting party, including duties as to: 
 

(1) maintenance and repairs; 
(2) providing public access; 
(3) restricting inappropriate commercial uses; and 
(4) promoting preservation of the historic, cultural, or architectural aspects of the 

landmark. 
 

(c) The contract may be handled in the same manner as a contract for professional services 
rendered to a county, such as a contract for architectural or engineering services, if the 
contract is with a nonprofit organization chartered in this state. 
 

(d) The contract may be for a period of years as determined by the Commissioners Court. 
 

Article 4 

Membership 

 
4.01 ELIGIBILITY. Each Commission member shall be an adult resident of Smith County, have 
an understanding of local history and an interest in the preservation of local historic resources. 
Non-resident members may be appointed to the Commission if they are employed by a historic- 
or preservation-related entity based in Smith County. 
 
4.02 TERM. Commissioners shall be appointed by the Commissioners Court for two-year terms 
beginning on January 1 of odd numbered years. The Commissioners Court shall fill a vacancy on 
the SCHC for the remainder of any unexpired term. Terms may be successive. 
 

(a) Pursuant to Section 318.004 of the Texas Local Government Code, if the Commissioners 
Court fails to appoint a Commission by April 1 of each odd numbered year, the Texas 
Historical Commission may appoint the Commission after thirty (30) days’ written notice 
to the Commissioners Court of its intention to do so. The County Judge shall serve as 
Commission chair during any interim period. 
 

(b) Any member may resign by filing a written resignation with the Chair, who shall, in turn, 
inform the Commissioners Court of such resignation at its next regularly scheduled 
meeting. 
 

(c) The Commissioners Court may accept recommendations from the Executive Board to fill 
any vacancies on the Commission. Appointments will not be official until action is taken 
by the Commissioners Court at their next regularly scheduled meeting. Any appointments 
made during a term will only serve until the next regular appointment date. 

 
4.03 MEMBERSHIP. The Smith County Historical Commission shall be composed of: 
 

(a) At least (7) appointed commissioners, from which at least one (1) shall be appointed from 
each precinct. 
 



Page 5 of 9 

(b) Individuals who broadly reflect the age, ethnic, and geographic diversity of the County. 
 

4.04 CHAIR. The Chair of the Smith County Historical Commission shall be appointed from 
among its members by the Commissioners Court at the same time regular appointments are made 
to the Commission. 

 
4.05 EMERITUS. Member Emeritus status may be accorded to any active member who has served 
at least three (3) terms but can no longer be active because of age, health, or demands of 
occupation. Emeritus status shall be a non-voting member. 

 
4.06 EX-OFFICIO. Ex-Officio Member status shall include the County Judge and the County 
Commissioners. Ex-officio status shall be a non-voting member. 

 
4.07 FRIEND OF THE SCHC. Friend of the Smith County Historical Commission status may be 
granted to any individual who expresses an interest in the historic preservation of Smith County 
and wishes to play an active role in the SCHC’s activities and efforts but does not desire to be 
appointed to the SCHC by the Commissioners Court or when no vacancy exists. Friend of the 
SCHC status is a non-voting member. 
 

Article 5 

Attendance 

 
5.01 Any member who misses three (3) consecutive regularly scheduled meetings or four (4) 
regular meetings during their term automatically vacates his or her appointment unless he or she 
can provide the Executive Board with a legitimate excuse, in which case one or more of the 
absences may be waived upon a favorable vote by the Commissioners present. Commissioners 
removed from the Commission due to attendance shall be ineligible for reappointment for at least 
one term. 
 
5.02 The Secretary shall present an attendance report at each meeting showing attendance by 
commissioners during that calendar year. 
 

Article 6 

Meetings 

 
6.01 REGULAR MEETINGS. Regular meetings shall be held four (4) times each year. The 
location and time of the meetings shall be determined by the Executive Board. 
 
6.02 SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings may be called by the Chair, two (2) officers of the 
Executive Board, or at the request of at least three (3) voting members. 
 
6.03 NOTICE OF MEETINGS. In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, notice of any 
Commission meeting shall be posted 72 hours before the scheduled time of the meeting in a place 
readily accessible to the general public at all times. Therefore, in addition to notifying each voting 
member by email, a notice shall be posted at the Smith County Courthouse which shall indicate 
the date, hour, place and subject of each meeting. 



Page 6 of 9 

 
6.04 RECORDS OF OPEN MEETING. The Commission shall prepare and keep minutes or make 
a recording of each open meeting. Such minutes shall state the subject of each deliberation and 
shall indicate each vote, order, decision or other action taken. In accordance with the Open 
Meetings Act, the minutes or tape recordings shall be available for public inspection and copying 
on requests to the County Judge’s Office. 
 
6.05 QUORUM. A quorum shall be a simple majority of the Commission’s appointed members, 
not including non-voting or ex-officio members. 
 
 

Article 7 

Officers 

 
7.01 OFFICERS AND DUTIES. Officers of the Executive Board shall be appointed by the Chair 
and approved by a majority vote of commissioners present at a meeting no later than the second 
regularly scheduled meeting of odd-numbered years, except that the Chair shall be appointed by 
the Commissioners Court. 
 
7.02 EXECUTIVE BOARD. Officers of the Executive Board shall consist of a Chair, Vice-Chair, 
Secretary, and Treasurer. 

 
(a) CHAIR. The Chair shall convene all regularly scheduled and special meetings of the Smith 

County Historical Commission. He or she shall preside over all meetings and have 
executive supervision over all activities of the SCHC within the scope provided by these 
Bylaws. The Chair shall report annually on the activities of the Commission to the 
Commissioners Court, to the membership, and to the Texas Historical Commission, as 
required. The Chair, or his or her designees, shall act as the principal liaison between the 
SCHC and other public, private, or governmental entities, as well as the general public. 
The Chair shall appoint members of committees and shall be an ex-officio member of all 
committees. 

 
(b) VICE-CHAIR. The Vice Chari shall Perform such duties as the commission, or the chair 

may direct; and assume the duties of the chair in the event of absence, incapacity or 
resignation of the chair. 
 

(c) SECRETARY. The Secretary shall be responsible for keeping records of all Commission 
meetings and actions, including overseeing the taking of minutes at all SCHC meetings, 
sending out notices and announcements, distributing copies of minutes and agendas to each 
member, preparing member attendance reports, and assuring that certified records are 
maintained. The Secretary shall act as the principal point of contact between the 
membership and the Executive Board. 
 

(d) TREASURER. The Treasurer shall be responsible for keeping adequate financial records, 
for depositing all funds with the County Treasurer, for preparing and recommending a 
budget and for expending budgeted funds in accordance with the procedures established 



Page 7 of 9 

by Smith County. The Treasurer shall submit financial reports to the Commissioners Court, 
as required, and to the membership at each meeting. The Treasurer shall chair the Finance 
Committee, help develop fundraising plans, and make financial information available to 
the Commission and the public. 
 

7.03 TERM. Officer terms shall be two (2) years commencing in January of each odd numbered 
year. Terms may be successive. 

 
7.04 RESIGNATION. Resignation of the Chair must be in writing and received by the County 
Judge. The Commissioners Court shall appoint a new Chair to complete the current term. 
Resignation of a Vice-Chair, Secretary, or Treasurer must be in writing and received by the Chair. 
The Chair shall select a replacement to complete the term, upon favorable vote of the Executive 
Board and the general membership present. 
 
7.05 HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER. In the event that Smith County becomes a 
Certified Local Government (CLG), the County Judge shall appoint/hire a Historic Preservation 
Officer (HPO) that satisfies the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualification Standards. 
The HPO shall be an appointed member of the Commission and in charge of all staff-led 
preservation efforts in the county. He or she shall ensure that all standards are met to keep the CLG 
program in good standing with the Texas Historical Commission. 
 

Article 8 

Committees 

 
8.01 The Chair shall appoint all committee chairs. Standing committees shall be listed in the 
section below. The Chair shall also appoint subcommittees and ad hoc committees, as needed. 
 
8.02 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE. The Executive Board shall be composed of the Commission 
Officers—Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer. The Executive Board shall be responsible 
for overseeing the planning, logistics, and direction of the Commission as a whole, and shall 
coordinate with all committee chairs to ensure an organized and harmonious SCHC. 
 

(a) In the event that Smith County becomes a Certified Local Government, the Executive 
Committee shall also act as the CLG Committee, with the Historic Preservation Officer 
serving as chair of that committee. The CLG Committee would then be required to meet at 
least six (6) times per year, complete the CLG Annual Report, and submit the report and 
all meeting minutes to the Texas Historical Commission. 

 
8.03 HISTORIC RESOURCES COMMITTEE. The Historic Resources Committee shall be 
responsible for developing a county-wide historic resource inventory composed of properties that 
have the achieved the following designations: Recorded Texas Historic Landmark, National 
Register of Historic Places, State Antiquities Landmark, and Subject Marker signs. This document 
shall be referred to as the Smith County Historic Sites and Structures Inventory (SCHSSI) 
 

(a) The Historic Resources Committee will update the SCHSSI annually.  



Page 8 of 9 

(b) The Historic Resources Committee will establish a system for periodic review, assessment, 
and maintenance of all Official Texas Historical Markers (Subject Markers and Recorded 
Texas Historic Landmarks) within the county boundaries.  
 

8.04 SUBJECT MARKER COMMITTEE. The Subject Marker Committee shall conduct research 
on significant local buildings, structures, sites, people, and events that have contributed to the 
history and development of Smith County, and shall nominate appropriate resources and subjects 
for designation with historical markers at the appropriate levels. The Committee shall also: 
 

(a) Help people interested in obtaining a marker through the application process. 
 

(b) Review all marker applications for accuracy and completeness before submitting them to 
the Texas Historical Commission. 

 
8.05 FINANCE COMMITTEE. The Finance Committee is responsible for all matters relating to 
the Commission’s fiscal responsibilities and shall be chaired by the Treasurer. The Committee 
shall follow all Smith County government procedures in management of the budget. The Finance 
Committee shall create a working budget for each year’s activities for submission to the 
Commissioners’ Court. 
 
8.06 CEMETERY COMMITTEE. The Cemetery Committee shall oversee all efforts related to the 
identification, documentation, preservation, maintenance, and beautification of all cemeteries in 
Smith County. The Committee shall work with public and private entities to plan, encourage, and 
facilitate the proper care of the county’s cemeteries. 
 
8.07 OUTREACH & PUBLICITY COMMITTEE. The Outreach & Publicity Committee shall be 
responsible for publicizing all SCHC events and activities beyond the notification requirements. 
This may include the use of email, newsletters, social media, and press releases. The Committee 
shall ensure that the citizens of Smith County are aware of the Commission’s work and 
contributions to the preservation of the county’s history and resources. 
 

Article 9 

Financial Administration 

 
9.01 FISCAL AND HUMAN RESOURCES. Pursuant to Section 318.009 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, the Commissioners Court may pay the necessary expenses of the Commission. 
 

(a) The Commissioners Court may make agreements with governmental agencies or private 
organizations and may appropriate funds from the general fund of the county for the 
purpose of: 
 

(1) erecting historical markers and monuments; 
(2) purchasing objects and collections of objects that are historically significant to the 

county; 
(3) preparing, publishing, and disseminating, by sale or otherwise, a history of the 

county; 



Page 9 of 9 

(4) hiring professional staff and consultants;
(5) providing matching funds for grants; and
(6) funding other programs or activities as suggested by the Texas Historical

Commission and the Commissioners Court.

(b) The Texas Historical Commission may make grants available to the Commission, subject
to the budgetary authority and approval of the Commissioners Court, to carry out the
purposes of this chapter.

9.02 BUDGET. The Finance Committee, under the direction of the Treasurer, shall prepare a list 
of anticipated expenditures for the ensuing year, but the final budget shall be prepared by the 
Commissioners Court. 

9.03 RECEIPT OF GIFTS. The Commission shall be authorized to accept gifts of money and 
property, including real property, to further its historical preservation goals and for any use in the 
of its lawful purpose consistent with the Texas Historical Commission and Smith County’s stated 
policies. All gifts will be acknowledged in a regular meeting of the Commissioners Court and 
monetary gifts will be deposited into the general fund of Smith County. 

Article 10 

Parliamentary Procedure 

10.01 PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE. Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised (latest 
edition), shall be the authoritative reference for all procedures not covered by these Bylaws. 

Article 11 

Amendments 

11.01 These Bylaws may be amended by the Executive Board, subject to ratification by two-thirds 
(2/3) vote of the qualified members present at a regularly scheduled Commission meeting, 
provided the amendment has been submitted in writing to the full membership at least two (2) 
weeks before the meeting at which the vote on the amendment is taken. The Bylaws will then be 
presented to the Commissioners Court for final approval at their next regularly scheduled meeting. 

Adopted by the Executive Board of the Smith County Historical Commission on the _______ 

of __________________ in the year 2025. 

______________________________ 

CONOR HERTERICH, CHAIR 

8th

April



4 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should 
be completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Wednesday at 5:00pm  
the week before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been 
proactively vetted with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court 
Meetings are at 9:30am on Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

4/16/2025 Rachel McCord

4/22/2025 Comm Court/Historical Commission

Amend Order - Smith County Historical Commission

Consider and take necessary action to amend the order to increase the Smith County Historical 
Commission size from nine members to ten members, and authorize the county judge to sign all 
related documentation. 

See attached.

N/A

Rachel McCord rmccord@smith-county.com

Jennafer Bell jbell2@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



Smith County Historical Commission 

Meeting Minutes 

Date: 8 April 2025 

Time: 1:30 pm 

Location: Commissioner Courtroom, Smith County Annex Building: 200 E. Ferguson St. Tyler, TX 

Commissioners present: Conor Herterich, Todd McMakin, Charles Turner, Jud Bailiff, Larry Wade, Mark 
Thacker, Sach Sabota, Kevin McCall, Vicki Betts. 

 
Motion to approve minutes made by Mr. Sabota, second by Mr. Wade. Minutes were approved as 

presented. 

 

Officer Reports: 

Vice Chairman Mr. McMakin reported on the Smith County Historic Sites and 
Structures Inventory (SCHSSI) data base development and that a data base created by 
Randy Gilbert will be utilized. The SCHSSI needs to incorporate Todd’s TxDOT 
resources. It was decided to postpone consideration until both data bases can be combined. 

 
Treasurer Mr. Bailiff reported that there are no funds as of this time and unsure how 
funding will be done—lump sum or through the county. Questions were raised about how 
the Commission finances will be facilitated and if the Commission will have its own bank 
account. Mr. Herterich asked Mr. Bailiff to figure these issues out.  
 

Committee Reports: 

Historical Resources: Mr. McMakin is continuing work on the Historic Sites inventory. 
 

Subject Marker: Mr. Thacker reported that an on line portal exists to apply for markers. 
No applications have been submitted at this time. Information is available on the Smith 
County web site. 

 
Cemetery: Mr. Wade reported that he now has a list of all cemeteries in Smith County 
and will provide them to Mr. Herterich. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Old Business: 

Camp Ford: Thursday County Judge Franklin and a group will meet at the Camp Ford 
site to survey the area and discuss the needs to include safety issues. Mr. McCall pointed 
out that the East Texas Heritage Museum Association owns some of the property across 
Highway 271 from Camp Ford where the Head Quarters of the post was located. Mr. 
Sabota agreed to contact Dr. Edwards to establish a line of communications. 

 
 
Mr. Herterich presented the bylaws, having made three minor changes. Mr. Turner made 

a motion to adopt the bylaws, second by Mr. Bailiff. Motion carried ( Bylaws 
attached). 

 
Mr. Wade presented a catalog of all museums in East Texas. Mr. Herterich suggested that 
he send a list of organizations in Smith County to the Commission who could review and 
suggest edits for a master list. Mr. Wade also suggested that a date be picked to meet with 
all the organizations in Smith County. 



 
 
 
Charles Turner, Secretary 

 
 

 
 

New Business: 

Mr. Bailiff reported that he had made a presentation at the Lindale City Council, Mr. 
McMakin reported that he had unsuccessfully tried to speak to the Whitehouse council. 
Mr. Turner reported that he planned to attend the Bullard City Council meeting tonight. 
 
 
Mr. Bailiff presented a Budget Application outlining the projected financial needs of the 
Commission (Budget Application attached). After discussion it was decided that the 
funds requested for three members of the Commission to attend the Real Places 
Conference of the Texas Historical Commission should be itemized and that funds for the 
placement of historical markers should be reduced to one large marker. Also it was 
suggested that some consideration be given to some funding for one annual event. 
 
Mr. McMakin reported that the county has a GIS team and they will work with us to 
develop the Smith County Historic Sites Atlas as part of the Smith County Historical 
Commission web site. 
 
Mr. Wade made a motion to accept Ms. Dorothy Franks as a candidate to be 

presented to the Commissioner Court to be a member of the Smith County 

Historical Commission, second by Mr. Turner. Motion carried. 

 

Adjourn: 

 

Date: April 8,2025 3:09 pm 
 
 

 
Conor Herterich, Chairman 



5 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should 
be completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Wednesday at 5:00pm  
the week before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been 
proactively vetted with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court 
Meetings are at 9:30am on Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

4/16/2025 Rachel McCord

4/22/2025 Comm Court/Historical Commission

Smith County Historical Commission - Appoint One Member

Consider and take necessary action to name and appoint one member to serve from the time of 
appointment through January 31, 2027, on the Smith County Historical Commission, and 
authorize the county judge to sign all related documentation. 

See attached.

N/A

Rachel McCord rmccord@smith-county.com

Jennafer Bell jbell2@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line



6 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should 
be completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Wednesday at 5:00pm  
the week before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been 
proactively vetted with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court 
Meetings are at 9:30am on Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

04/14/2022 Brandon Moore

04/22/2025 Fire Marshal

Award for FEMA Public Assistance

Consider and take necessary action to approve the awards of $297,365 for debris removal, $35,438 for CR 2110, and 
$21,563 for CR 3203,  from the Federal Emergency Management Agency for Public Assistance, allow the county judge to 
sign all related documentation, and allow the Emergency Management Coordinator to submit all required documentation 
to the Texas Division of Emergency Management. 

These awards from FEMA stem from the May and June 2024 storms and disaster declaration issued by 
Smith County. Smith County has been awarded $297,365.91 for project number 1198 (Cat A, debris), 
$35,438.13 for project number 1580 (CR 2110), and $21,563.91 for project number 1581 (CR 3203),  
from the Federal Emergency Management Agency for Public Assistance in relation to disaster number 
DR-4781.

Brandon Moore bmoore2@smith-county.com

Chad Hogue chogue@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



Federal Emergency Management Agency
Project Completion and Certification Report (P.4)

Event: 4781DR-TX (4781DR)

Applicant FIPS ID: 423-99423-00 Applicant/Subdivision Name: Smith County

Project
#

PW # Version
#

Work Category Eligible
Cost

Cost
Share
%

Work Done By Work
Completion
Percentage

Activity
Completion
Deadline

Actual
Date
Completed

Final
Expenditures

Comment

761524 01198 0 A - Debris Removal $396,487.88 75.00% 100.00% 11/17/2024

Federal Emergency Management Agency
Project Completion and Certification Report (P.4)

Event: 4781DR-TX (4781DR)

Applicant FIPS ID: 423-99423-00 Applicant/Subdivision Name: Smith County

I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief all work and costs claimed are eligible in
accordance with the grant conditions, all work claimed has been completed, and all costs claimed have
been paid in full.

I hereby certify that all funds were expended in accordance with the provisions of the signed FEMA-State
Agreement and I recommend an approved amount of $___________________.

Signed:_____________________________________
Applicant’s Authorized Representative

Date:_____________________ Signed:_____________________________________
Governor’s Authorized Representative

Date:_____________________

Date Downloaded: 4/8/25 11:51am CDT 1 of 1

FA Labor 3/7/2025 505,893.52

297,365.91



Federal Emergency Management Agency
Project Completion and Certification Report (P.4)

Event: 4781DR-TX (4781DR)

Applicant FIPS ID: 423-99423-00 Applicant/Subdivision Name: Smith County

Project
#

PW # Version
#

Work Category Eligible
Cost

Cost
Share
%

Work Done By Work
Completion
Percentage

Activity
Completion
Deadline

Actual
Date
Completed

Final
Expenditures

Comment

797688 01581 0 C - Roads and Bridges $28,751.88 75.00% 100.00% 11/17/2025

Federal Emergency Management Agency
Project Completion and Certification Report (P.4)

Event: 4781DR-TX (4781DR)

Applicant FIPS ID: 423-99423-00 Applicant/Subdivision Name: Smith County

I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief all work and costs claimed are eligible in
accordance with the grant conditions, all work claimed has been completed, and all costs claimed have
been paid in full.

I hereby certify that all funds were expended in accordance with the provisions of the signed FEMA-State
Agreement and I recommend an approved amount of $___________________.

Signed:_____________________________________
Applicant’s Authorized Representative

Date:_____________________ Signed:_____________________________________
Governor’s Authorized Representative

Date:_____________________

Date Downloaded: 4/8/25 11:50am CDT 1 of 1

FA Labor 9/4/2024 28,751.88

21,563.91



Federal Emergency Management Agency
Project Completion and Certification Report (P.4)

Event: 4781DR-TX (4781DR)

Applicant FIPS ID: 423-99423-00 Applicant/Subdivision Name: Smith County

Project
#

PW # Version
#

Work Category Eligible
Cost

Cost
Share
%

Work Done By Work
Completion
Percentage

Activity
Completion
Deadline

Actual
Date
Completed

Final
Expenditures

Comment

797686 01580 0 C - Roads and Bridges $47,250.83 75.00% 100.00% 11/17/2025

Federal Emergency Management Agency
Project Completion and Certification Report (P.4)

Event: 4781DR-TX (4781DR)

Applicant FIPS ID: 423-99423-00 Applicant/Subdivision Name: Smith County

I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief all work and costs claimed are eligible in
accordance with the grant conditions, all work claimed has been completed, and all costs claimed have
been paid in full.

I hereby certify that all funds were expended in accordance with the provisions of the signed FEMA-State
Agreement and I recommend an approved amount of $___________________.

Signed:_____________________________________
Applicant’s Authorized Representative

Date:_____________________ Signed:_____________________________________
Governor’s Authorized Representative

Date:_____________________

Date Downloaded: 4/8/25 11:51am CDT 1 of 1

FA Labor 6/25/2024 47,250.83

35,438.13



7 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

   APRIL 15, 2025                FRANK DAVIS                              

        APRIL 22, 2025                 ROAD & BRIDGE                          

          Road Improvements - Acceptance of Project                                                    

Consider and take necessary action to accept the completion of the construction contract 
for Roadway Improvements to CR 1246, authorize the County Judge to execute the 
Reconciliation Change Order, and authorize final payment to Texana Land & Asphalt, Inc. 

The Road and Bridge Department is requesting The Commissioners Court to accept the completion of 
RB-09-25, Roadway Improvements to CR 1246 (Country Place Addition), as performed by Texana Land 
& Asphalt, Inc.  The contract was awarded in the bid amount of $1,091,592.10.  The final construction 
cost is in the amount of $1,069,164.62, resulting in an underrun of $22,427.48.  Paving improvements 
were made to a total of 3.731 miles of county roadways.

      Underrun amount of awarded contract is $22,427.48

  Frank Davis   fdavis@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



RECONCILIATION CHANGE ORDER

PROJECT NAME:   ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS TO CR 1246 DATE: 15-Apr-25

CONTRACTOR:   TEXANA LAND & ASPHALT PROJECT: RB-09-25

ADDRESS:   5848 CR 1100, SULPHUR SPRINGS, TX 75482

PHONE NO.:   903-243-3409
   

ITEM ITEM UNIT OF CONTRACT COMPLETE OVERRUN/ UNIT INCREASE/
NO. DESCRIPTION MEASURE QUANTITY TO DATE (UNDERRUN) PRICE (DECREASE)

100 STA 197.00 197.00 0.00 20.00$              -$                      

104 SY 30.00 (30.00) 100.00$            (3,000.00)$            

134 STA 197.00 197.00 0.00 50.00$              -$                      

251 SY 50,850.00 24,542.00 (26,308.00) 1.65$                (43,408.20)$          

275-A TON 485.00 (485.00) 250.00$            (121,250.00)$        

275-B SY 50,850.00 (50,850.00) 1.95$                (99,157.50)$          

310 GAL 9,200.00 (9,200.00) 0.01$                (92.00)$                 

340 TON 5,600.00 7,424.48 1,824.48 134.00$            244,480.32$         

560 EA 10.00 (10.00) 0.01$                (0.10)$                   

8000 LS 1.00 1.00 0.00 20,000.00$       -$                      

SUB-TOTAL:  CR 1246 ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS (22,427.48)$          

Original Contract Total $1,091,592.10

Amount of Approved Change Orders $0.00

Adjusted Contract Amount $1,091,592.10

Increase/Decrease Amount in Original Contract Quantities (22,427.48)$  

Increase/Decrease Amount of Approved Change Orders $0.00

Materials on Hand $0.00

TOTAL AMOUNT THIS CHANGE ORDER ($22,427.48)

FINAL CONTRACT TOTAL $1,069,164.62

This Document will become a supplement to the contract and all provisions will apply hereto.

RECOMMENDED   

FOR APPROVAL:   

County Engineer Date

ACCEPTED:   

Contractor  Date

ACCEPTED:   

County Judge Date

PRIME COAT (MC-30)

MAILBOX - TEMP RELOCATE & RE-
INSTALL
ALLOWANCE FOR UNKNOWN 
CONDITIONS

REMOVE CONC 
(DRIVEWAY)(SAWCUT)

D-GR HMA TY-D (SURF)

PREPARE ROW

BACKFILL PVMT EDGE (TY B)
RWK BS MTL (TY D)(ORD COMP)(8 
IN)

CEMENT (3.5%)(19 LBS/SY)
CEMENT TREAT (EXIST MATL)(8 
IN)

PAGE 1 OF 1 4/15/2025



8 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

   APRIL 15, 2025                FRANK DAVIS                              

        APRIL 22, 2025                 ROAD & BRIDGE                          

          Road Improvements - Acceptance of Project                                                    

Consider and take necessary action to accept the completion of the construction contract for 
Roadway Improvements to CR 313 and CR 32, authorize the County Judge to execute the 
Reconciliation Change Order, and authorize final payment to Texana Land & Asphalt, Inc. 

The Road and Bridge Department is requesting The Commissioners Court to accept the completion of 
RB-10-25, Roadway Improvements to CR 313 (CR 32 to FM 14) and CR 32 (CR 313 to FM 2710), as 
performed by Texana Land & Asphalt, Inc.  The contract was awarded in the bid amount of 
$1,585,109.60.  The final construction cost is in the amount of $1,560,464.93, resulting in an underrun of 
$24,644.67.  Paving improvements were made to a total of 5.445 miles of county roadways.

      Underrun amount of awarded contract is $24,644.57

  Frank Davis   fdavis@smith-county.com

✔

✔ ✔

✔

SUBMIT



RECONCILIATION CHANGE ORDER

PROJECT NAME:    ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS TO CR 313 & CR 32 DATE: 11-Apr-25

CONTRACTOR:   TEXANA LAND & ASPHALT PROJECT: RB-10-25

ADDRESS:   5848 CR 1100, SULPHUR SPRINGS, TX 75482

PHONE NO.:   903-243-3409
   

ITEM ITEM UNIT OF CONTRACT COMPLETE OVERRUN/ UNIT INCREASE/
NO. DESCRIPTION MEASURE QUANTITY TO DATE (UNDERRUN) PRICE (DECREASE)

100 STA 81.00 84.00 3.00 20.00$               60.00$                  

134 STA 81.00 84.00 3.00 50.00$               150.00$                

150 HR 10.00 0.00 (10.00) 80.00$               (800.00)$               

251 SY 23,640.00 24,520.00 880.00 2.00$                 1,760.00$             

275-A TON 242.00 253.28 11.28 235.00$             2,650.80$             

275-B SY 23,640.00 24,520.00 880.00 2.00$                 1,760.00$             

310 GAL 4,300.00 0.00 (4,300.00) 0.01$                 (43.00)$                 

340 TON 2,600.00 2,954.86 354.86 122.00$             43,292.92$           

502 WK 6.00 6.00 0.00 500.00$             -$                      

560 EA 10.00 0.00 (10.00) 0.01$                 (0.10)$                   

666-A LF 16,200.00 16,992.00 792.00 0.60$                 475.20$                

666-B LF 16,200.00 16,769.00 569.00 0.60$                 341.40$                

666-C LF 60.00 18.00 (42.00) 20.00$               (840.00)$               

672 EA 410.00 422.00 12.00 8.00$                 96.00$                  

8000 LS 1.00 (1.00) 15,000.00$        (15,000.00)$          

SUB-TOTAL:  CR 313 ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS 33,903.22$           

CR 32 IMPROVEMENTS

100 STA 204.00 204.00 0.00 20.00$               -$                      

134 STA 204.00 204.00 0.00 50.00$               -$                      

150 HR 10.00 0.00 (10.00) 80.00$               (800.00)$               

251 SY 52,530.00 52,530.00 0.00 1.85$                 -$                      

275-A TON 535.00 466.19 (68.81) 235.00$             (16,170.35)$          

275-B SY 52,530.00 52,530.00 0.00 2.20$                 -$                      

310 GAL 9,500.00 0.00 (9,500.00) 0.01$                 (95.00)$                 

340 TON 5,700.00 5,482.93 (217.07) 122.00$             (26,482.54)$          

502 WK 8.00 8.00 0.00 500.00$             -$                      

8000 LS 1.00 (1.00) 15,000.00$        (15,000.00)$          

SUB-TOTAL:  CR 32 ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS (58,547.89)$          

D-GR HMA TY-D (SURF)
BARRICADES, SIGNS AND 
TRAFFIC HANDLING
ALLOWANCE FOR UNKNOWN 
CONDITIONS

BLADING FOR DITCH 
MAINTENANCE

REFL PAV MRK TY I (Y) 4" (SLD) 
(090MIL)
REFL PAV MRK TY I (W) 4" (SLD) 
(090MIL)
REFL PAV MRK TY I (W) 24" (SLD) 
(090MIL)

REFL PAV MRKR TY II-A-A

BACKFILL PVMT EDGE (TY B)

RWK BS MTL (TY D)(ORD COMP)(8 
IN)

CEMENT (3.5%)(19 LBS/SY)
CEMENT TREAT (EXIST MATL)(8 
IN)

PRIME COAT (MC-30)

BLADING FOR DITCH 
MAINTENANCE

BARRICADES, SIGNS AND 
TRAFFIC HANDLING
MAILBOX - TEMP RELOCATE & RE-
INSTALL

ALLOWANCE FOR UNKNOWN 
CONDITIONS

D-GR HMA TY-D (SURF)

PREPARE ROW

PREPARE ROW

BACKFILL PVMT EDGE (TY B)

RWK BS MTL (TY D)(ORD COMP)(8 
IN)

CEMENT (3.5%)(19 LBS/SY)
CEMENT TREAT (EXIST MATL)(8 
IN)

PRIME COAT (MC-30)

PAGE 1 OF 2 4/11/2025



RECONCILIATION CHANGE ORDER

PROJECT NAME:    ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS TO CR 313 & CR 32 DATE: 11-Apr-25

CONTRACTOR:   TEXANA LAND & ASPHALT PROJECT: RB-10-25

ADDRESS:   5848 CR 1100, SULPHUR SPRINGS, TX 75482

PHONE NO.:   903-243-3409
   

ITEM ITEM UNIT OF CONTRACT COMPLETE OVERRUN/ UNIT INCREASE/
NO. DESCRIPTION MEASURE QUANTITY TO DATE (UNDERRUN) PRICE (DECREASE)

Original Contract Total 1,585,109.60$  

Amount of Approved Change Orders $0.00

Adjusted Contract Amount $1,585,109.60

Increase/Decrease Amount in Original Contract Quantities (24,644.67)$   

Increase/Decrease Amount of Approved Change Orders $0.00

Materials on Hand $0.00

TOTAL AMOUNT THIS CHANGE ORDER ($24,644.67)

FINAL CONTRACT TOTAL $1,560,464.93

This Document will become a supplement to the contract and all provisions will apply hereto.

RECOMMENDED   

FOR APPROVAL:   

County Engineer Date

ACCEPTED:   

Contractor  Date

ACCEPTED:   

County Judge Date

PAGE 2 OF 2 4/11/2025



9 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should 
be completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Wednesday at 5:00pm  
the week before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been 
proactively vetted with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court 
Meetings are at 9:30am on Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

04/16/2025 KAREN NELSON

04/22/2025 ROAD & BRIDGE

PLAT

Consider and take necessary action to authorize the County Judge to sign the: 
a. Re-plat for Gruene Valle Ranch, Lots 54, 55 and 56, Precinct 1, 
b. Re-plat for Johnston Farms Estates, Unit 2, Precinct 3; and 
c. Re-plat for Dove Ridge, Phase One, Precinct 4 

✔

SUBMIT





jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line





jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line





jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line



10 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should 
be completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Wednesday at 5:00pm  
the week before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been 
proactively vetted with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court 
Meetings are at 9:30am on Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

04/16/2025 KAREN NELSON

04/22/2025 ROAD & BRIDGE

UTILITY PERMIT

Receive pipe and/or utility line installation request (notice only): 
a. County Road 138, CenterPoint Energy, install lines for service, Precinct 1, 
b. County Road 2213, Conterra Ultra Broadband LLC, install fiber optic cable, Precinct 2; and 
c. County 2175, Walnut Grove Water Supply Corporation, road bore, Precinct 2 

✔

SUBMIT



jmacmillan
Line







jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line







jmacmillan
Line

jmacmillan
Line











11 



SMITH COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 

Note: This is the only form required for agenda requests, with the exception of backup materials or attachments. This form should be 
completed and emailed to Agenda@smith-county.com and include any necessary attachments. Deadline is Tuesday at 5:00pm a week 
before the next scheduled Commissioners Court meeting.  Please make sure the requested agenda item has been proactively vetted 
with the appropriate reviewing individuals and obtained their signature as reviewed. Regular Court Meetings are at 9:30am on 
Tuesdays each week. 

Office Use Only         
Agenda Item # ________ 

Submission Date:   Submitted by: 
Meeting Date:   Department: 

Item Requested is:  For Action/Consideration          For Discussion/Report 

Title: 

Agenda Category:   Briefing Session 
 Court Orders                     
 Presentation               

  Recurring Business   
 Resolution 
 Executive Session 

Agenda Wording: 

Background: 

Financial and Operational Impact: 

Attachments:  Yes No Is a Budget Amendment Necessary? Yes No 

 Does Document Require Signature?   Yes No 

Return Signed Documents to the following: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 
Name: Email: 

Jennafer Bell
Weekly Auditor

Weekly Bill Pay

Consider and take necessary action to approve and/or ratify payment of accounts, 
bills, payroll, transfer of funds, amendments, and health claims.

✔

✔

✔

SUBMIT






	4-22-2025 CC Agenda
	1- Resolution - CC - Decision Day 
	2- CO - CC - Resolution of Support
	3- CO - CC - SCHC Bylaws
	4- CO - CC - SCHC Amend Order
	5- CO - CC - SCHC Appt. Member
	6- CO - FMO - Award for FEMA Public Assistance
	7- CO - RB - Accept Project
	8- CO - RB - Accept Project
	9- Recurring - RB - Plat 
	10- Recurring - RB - Utility Permits
	11- Recurring - Auditor - Weekly Bill Pay 



